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Located at the northwest corner of the Courthouse Square is the three-
story, red brick, Romanesque Revival building, which served as McCulloch
County's jail from 1910 through 1974. A picturesque landmark for the
city, the jail's medieval style symbolized the concept of strength

and stability for the community.

The first and third floor openings are ornamented by round arches
containing semi-circular transoms, while the second floor contains
rectangular openings. At each level brick stringcourses divide

the structure horizontally. Under the stringcourse above the first
floor is a brick corbel table, graduating to a larger secale under

the stringcourse above the third floor. The stringcourses, corbeling
and arches are emphasized against the red brick structure by a contrast-
ing color.

Twin towers flank the east or main facade. Each tower is square with
a crenellated parapet and an arched opening centered in each parapet
wall. Typical of Romanesque Revival construction the tower on the
northeast corner is slightly taller than the southeast tower and contains
additional ornamentation in the brick detail. This tower contains the
interior stairway. Two small battlements, one of which contains a
chimney, rise from each corner of the roof on the west or rear facade.
Between each of the four corner battlements are stepped parapets con-
taining an arched opening in the center. The simple cornice detail
crowning the roof and battlements are emphasized by the contrasting
color of the brick.

The first floor of the interior contained the jailer's quarters and the
second and third floors included the prison facilities. On the first
floor a wide hallway ran from east to west, dividing that floor into
two sections. The principal entrance was on the east, where an arch
divided the hallway, creating a vestibule inside the front entrance.
Only a small portion of the first floor was not dedicated to jailer
living quarters. That exception encompassed an area of about 8 by 12
feet in the northeast corner of the building. This area enclosed the
stairwell and steel stairway leading to prisoner quarters, the two
upper floors of the three story building. The first floor living
quarters was protected from the prison area and stairwell by a locked
steel door, and an outside entry to the prison was provided through

a second steel door to the stairwell from the north.

(see continuation sheet #1)
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Beside the second floor landing were hangman's facilities; a two-part
steel trap door, hinged east and west, and a trip lever. Above the
trap door, secured to the underside of the third floor, was a ring for
the hanging rope. After years of inactivity, the trap doors were
eventually welded together to prevent accidental tripping. Except for
the stairwell and hangmen's corner, the entire second floor was used
for cage space, the cells themselves providing support for the third
floor. The upper floor may not at first have been fully equipped,
since on 13 January 1930 an additional cage was ordered for the third
floor.

In the original construction steam heat was provided, the boiler being
located in a pit beneath the floor on the southwest corner of the
structure. However, the plant was never entirely satisfactory and was
considered both inefficient and dangerous. After natural gas became
available, the heating plant was abandoned completely. The pit was
filled with sand in 1974 by trustees of the Heart of Texas Historical
Museum, when a loose beam supporting the kitchen floor above the

steam plant pit was repaired.

From 1910 until the old McCulloch County Jail was abandoned in 1974,
no major alterations were made. The building remains structurally
sound and will soon house the new Heart of Texas Museum.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1909-1910, the old McCulloch County Jail served as the second
jail for the county and continued in its original capacity as space for
prisoner confinement and jailer's quarters until 1974 when the county
built a new law enforcement building. Besides its historical significance
to the county, the jail's unique architectural style became a picturesque
landmark for the city. Then the county decided to abandon the jail in
1974, local citizens organized the Heart of Texas Museum and bought the
structure to house their historical museum.

McCulloch County is in the geographical center of Texas on the northern
border of the Edwards Plateau. The first attempt at settlement in the
area was made by John O. Neusenbach, who crossed the Llano River in 1847
to negotiate with the Comanches and explore the land along the San Saba Rive
River. 1Indian troubles and frontier hazards, however, prevented permanent
settlement. The county was created from Bexar County in 1856 and named
for Ben McCulloch. McCulloch served in the Battle of San Jacinto, the
first Congress of the Republic of Texas, and the Mexican War. In addition,
he was appointed a U.S. Marshall in 1853, a peace commissioner to settle
the Mormon trouble in Utah in 1857, and was finally killed during the
Civil wWar while serving as a brigadier general in the Confederate Army

at the battle of Elk Horn. The county remained buffalo country until the
1870's and did not organize until 1876. Brady City, named for Peter

Brady, one of the first surveyors of McCulloch County, became the

county seat.

John McDonald of Austin, Texas, built the first jail and courthouse for
McCulloch County in 1878. Both structures were apparentily poorly
constructed, for the need for new buildings arose within a few years

after their construction. The courthouse had barely passed its 2lst

year when the Commissioner's Court ordered that it be destroyed and
replaced. Within four'months after the jail's completion, the Court ordered
(though it later rescinded its decision) that wrought iron bars be placed
between the upper and lower floors for additional support. By 1885
prisoners were being transferred for "safe-keeping" because of "unhealthful
conditions" to jails in neighboring Mason and San Saba, until the court

(see continuation sheet #2)
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ordered an addition constructed in 1886. Finally by 1908 the need for
a new jail became so pressing that the Commissioner's Court began plans
to construct a new building, Following the sale of McCulloch County's
inadequate 32-year old jail, a contract for construction of a new one
was awarded to Southern Structural Steel Company of San Antonio, Texas.
The new site was located on the northeast corner of block 21, due west
of the Courthouse Square. On September 30, 1909, the Commissioner's
Court appointed J. L. Jordan, a local building contractor, as the
construction inspector. The jail was completed in 1910 at a cost of
$14,418.75 and final settlement was made with Southern Structural Steel
Company on April 9th of that year.

The greater portion of the first floor was used as living quarters for
the jailer, the person responsible for the care and feeding of the
prisoners. This responsibility was carried out either by the sheriff or
one of his deputies. Mr. 0. D. Waddill, who served as sheriff from 1922
through 1925, appears to have been the first elected sheriff to live in
the jail. He was succeeded by Mr. Love Kimbrough, who also lived in the
jailer's quarters for most of his years as sheriff. Sheriff Kimbrough
and his family moved out permanently some months after the 1938 Brady
Creek flood. Twice during the Kimbrough's occupancy, before flood-control
measures were finally instituted, the sheriff's family was forced out by
the encroaching waters of flooding Brady Creek. In mid-September of
1936, the creek broke from its banks and flooded Sheriff Kimbrough's
living quarters with over a foot of water. The same thing occurred
again in late July of 1938 when floodwaters rose to a depth of between
three and four feet in the sheriff's living quarters.

Apparently Deputy Henry Sharpe moved into the jail when Mr. Kimbrough
and his family left. All other elected county sheriffs, beginning with
Mr. A. B. Willborn, who took office in January 1949, have lived in the
jail. The current county sheriff, Mr. Luke Vogel, was the last to live
in the jail, moving to the new Law Enforcement Building in October, 1974.

The trustees of the Heart of Texas Historical Museum took immediate charge
of the old jail, with plans to preserve the structure as an historical
museum. The deed from McCulloch County to the Heart of Texas Historical
Museum for a high bid of $5.00 was dated 9 December 1974, and was for
Lots 7, 8 and 9, plus two feet of Lot 6 of Block #21.
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, elements.— '

gml 3 stories, Modiped rLL}M%U_ deematils™ atingm wnd. d'\"mnu.ds, b ondrnc Wth

fanting cndaded 4oy le\opthLW\sLaud‘ as hlind stppd ude panapuad sicha with
Opn (1br 0N ;  eelalid ehncee ol 3 sy, simplics, simulan can ze alunue 5+ gty s
roundeanched. uu\d.mn), - A smﬂaﬂm [TV UV uV\LLU\tLd. o Mty .q-,q ?-lmamoqug b.uwa]
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SIGNIFICA NCE-(maxlmum two sentences) ) WWWWWM

A good example of & building designed to give a v:Lsual impression of
strength and impregnability.



